
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

Community 
Governance 
Review 
Working 
Group 

 

     
 

 

Monday, 31 January 2022 at 2.00 pm 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House, St. Peter's Hill, 

Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor Louise Clack (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor John Cottier, Councillor Nikki Manterfield, Councillor Annie Mason, 
Councillor Charmaine Morgan, Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley, Councillor Ian Selby, 
Councillor Jacky Smith, Councillor Lee Steptoe, Councillor Adam Stokes, Councillor 
Dean Ward, Councillor Hilary Westropp, Councillor Mark Whittington and Councillor 
Ray Wootten 
 

Agenda 
 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of Interests 
 

 

3.   Notes from the meeting held on 17 January 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 6) 

4.   Community Governance Review Draft Consultation Document 
 

(Pages 7 - 22) 

  
 
Please note this meeting is available to Join by Zoom using the following link: 
 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85989447281?pwd=SVdkOVhsTitaOGtlVk4yZlZKdTl
RZz09 

 

 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85989447281?pwd=SVdkOVhsTitaOGtlVk4yZlZKdTlRZz09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85989447281?pwd=SVdkOVhsTitaOGtlVk4yZlZKdTlRZz09


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Notes 
 

Community Governance Review 
Working Group 
 

Monday, 17 January 2022, 2.00 pm 

                  
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  
St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 
Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman)  
Councillor Louise Clack (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor Nikki Manterfield 
Councillor Annie Mason 
Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley 
Councillor Ian Selby 
Councillor Jacky Smith 
Councillor Lee Steptoe 
Councillor Dean Ward 
Councillor Hilary Westropp 
Councillor Mark Whittington 
 
Officers in attendance 
 
Graham Watts, Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer 
Julie Edwards, Electoral Services Manager 
Lucy Bonshor, Democratic Officer 
 
HYBRID MEETING - IN PERSON AND BY ZOOM 

 

6. Apologies for absence 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors’ Morgan, Adam Stokes and 
Ray Wootten. 

 
7. Disclosure of Interests 

 
None disclosed. 

 
8. Draft Notes from the meeting held on 13 December 2021 

 
The notes from the meeting held on 13 December 2021 were proposed, seconded 
and agreed subject to the following amendments:   

 

3

Agenda Item 3



 

 

That the date of the meeting shown as 13 November 2021 be changed to 13 
December 2021 and that consideration of holding a referendum be included in the 
points listed under agenda item 5.  

 
9. Community Governance Review - Terms of Reference 

 
At the last meeting of the Working Group, the Terms of Reference for the 
Community Governance Review had been discussed.  A formatted version of the 
Terms of Reference had been circulated with the agenda which included graphics 
for Members information.  The Terms of Reference would be debated at Council on 
27 January 2022. 

 
A comment was made about the lack of inclusion in the Terms of Reference to any 
threshold in respect of the number of responses received to the consultation.  It was 
noted that the ultimate decision would be made by Council following 
recommendations made by the Working Group after taking into consideration all 
feedback received to the consultation.  A further comment was made about the 
inclusion of possible changes to the role of the Mayor within the document, 
however, it was noted that the civic function was mentioned at 3.3 of the document.  

 
10. Consultation Methods and Options and Draft Community Governance Review 

Consultation Document 
 

Circulated with the agenda was a document detailing the methods and options 
available in respect of consultation on the Community Governance Review.  A list of 
stakeholders was also included. The Head of Democratic Services and Deputy 
Monitoring Officer requested that if Members were aware of any further groups to 
be included in the consultation to let Officers know and provide their contact details. 

 
ACTION 

 
Members to let Officers know of any further groups for inclusion in the 
consultation together with their contact details. 

 
Comments made in relation to the methods and options for consultation were made 
as follows: 

 

• Consideration had to be given to the current climate in respect of Covid 
and contact attendances. 

• The timetable for the scheduled by-elections had to be considered. 

• Budget constraints, a funding bid of £20,000 had been included as part 
of the 2022/23 budget proposals. 

• Costs for direct mail-out to each household in Grantham and 
neighbouring parishes. 

• Size of document to be distributed. 

• The type of feedback required from the questions asked. 

• The need for residents to have the necessary information to enable 
them to complete the questionnaire. 

• Information and questions contained within any circulated document 
had to be independent and from a neutral perspective.   

4



 

 

• Mail out did not include return envelopes. 
 

As both agenda items 5 and 6 were linked it was agreed that they would be 
discussed together and the following points were made. 

 

• Font format within the final document needed to be consistent.  

• The questionnaire would be available on-line following the date of the 
by-elections held on 24 February 2022. 

• Some Members felt that reference needed to be made to the possible 
increase in Council Tax that a Grantham Town Council may have. 

• It was important to acknowledge that the process needed to be 
impartial and fair and that arbitrary figures could not be included in the 
documents as they were unknown. 

• Thanks were given to the Head of Democratic Services and Monitoring 
Officer and the team for the work done to date on the Community 
Governance Review documents. 

• Other societies for inclusion were mentioned such as the Civic Society, 
Heritage England, Friends of Wyndham Park and Friends of Queen 
Elizabeth Park and the inclusion of clubs such as the tennis club and 
supermarkets as well as the inclusion of schools specifically older 
children in secondary schools and colleges.  It was requested that 
Members forward by e-mail, any names and contact details for 
organisations to be included in the consultations process to the CGR 
Team.  

• A comment was made in relation to the electoral arrangements that had 
been included, did these include all arrangements available. 

• It was suggested that hyperlinks be included on the on-line consultation 
to enable people to access more information if they wished to do so. 

• It was noted that a QR code would be included and an explanation and 
links could be provided within the on-line consultation questionnaire. 

• Warding arrangements were part of the review and these were 
referenced within the Terms of Reference document. 

• Reference was made to precepts within the Terms of Reference 
document but no figures could be included as they were unknown and 
any figures included could be challenged – any documentation had to 
be from a neutral perspective. 

• The order of questions was raised, some Members felt that question 1 
on the draft questionnaire should not be the first question asked. 

• The areas of Grantham covered by a Grantham Town Council should 
also include the Alma Park area which currently came under the 
Londonthorpe and Harrowby Without Parish Council. 

• Would a Grantham Town Council be Value for Money or would people 
see it as just another level of unwanted government. 

• The launching of the public consultation should be promoted through 
the Council’s website, social media and the Grantham Journal.  

• How would comments be collated from the questionnaires?  Comments 
would be grouped into themes and these would be fed back to the 
Working Group for consideration. 

• The content of the questions were discussed with references being 
made to the inclusion of an increase in Council Tax and the possibility 

5



 

 

of a unitary authority for Lincolnshire being implemented in the future 
which would affect Grantham having a “voice” in the future at a local 
level.   

• The need to educate people about what a Town Council for Grantham 
would mean listing the benefits and disadvantages and how this could 
be addressed. 

 
The Head of Democratic Services and Monitoring Officer thanked Members for their 
comments in relation to the document before them. However, it was stated that the 
consultation documents had to be impartial and neutral and the emphasis had to be 
on the governance structure, not on the costs.  The inclusion of links in the on-line 
documents would be explored and added where it would assist with people’s 
decision making.   
 
A further meeting of the Working Group would need to be scheduled following the 
Council meeting on 27 January 2022 to finalise consultation documents for printing 
and distribution.  Monday 31 January was suggested and agreed with Members. 

 
A question was asked about whether comments received in relation to the 
consultation could be included on the website if possible.   
 
It was suggested that other local authorities who had gone through this process be 
examined, to find the best practice used in the consultation document. 
 
ACTION 
 
That a further meeting of the Working Group be scheduled for Monday 31 
January 2022.    

 
11. Close of meeting 

 
The meeting closed at 03:02pm. 

 
 

6



Should Grantham 
have a Town  
Council?
Information Document

Have your say by  
Friday 8 April 2022 at:  
	www.southkesteven.gov.

uk/GranthamCGR 

7

Agenda Item 4



2

1. Introduction
South Kesteven District Council is undertaking a 
Community Governance Review to determine if 
there is support for the creation of a town or parish 
council for Grantham and whether any parts of the 
neighbouring parishes should be included in any 
new council.

Full information about the review including the terms 
of reference and a timetable are available on the 
Council’s website at www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
granthamCGR.

Local residents, business owners and organisations 
within Grantham and neighbouring parishes are 
invited to give their views.  We would like to hear 
your views on whether or not a new town or parish 
council for Grantham should be created and what 
area this should cover.
Please spare us a few moments to tell us what you 
think by completing the survey. 

The Council will consider all feedback before 
making draft recommendations.  These will then 
be subject to further consultation before final 
recommendations are published and considered by 
Councillors.

How to respond:

You can complete this survey online at  
www.southkesteven.gov.uk/GranthamCGR 
or complete the paper version and return it to: 
Grantham Community Governance Review, Legal 
and Democratic Services, South Kesteven District 
Council, Council Offices, St Peter’s Hill, Grantham, 
NG31 6PZ.  
Alternatively you can tell us your views by emailing 
cgr@southkesteven.gov.uk

PLEASE NOTE THIS CONSULATION 
CLOSES ON 8 APRIL 2022

What is a Community 
Governance Review?

A Community Governance Review is a formal 
process involving consultation with local electors 
and other interested parties on potential changes 
such as creating new parishes, setting up or 
abolishing town/parish councils, changing their 
boundaries or electoral arrangements.

Who is carrying out the review?

South Kesteven District Council is responsible 
for carrying out the review. It will be overseen by 
the Council’s Community Governance Review 
Working Group, which is made up of members 
from all wards of the town of Grantham. They will 
make recommendations (based on the comments 
received during the consultation process) to full 
council, who will decide whether to change existing 
governance arrangements for Grantham. 

Which area of South Kesteven is 
under review?

The review will focus on the current unparished area 
of Grantham and the boundaries with surrounding 
parishes as shown on Map A below. 

Why is the Council carrying out a 
Community Governance Review 
now?

South Kesteven District Council, agreed to carry out 
a Community Governance Review at its meeting on 
30 September 2021 to consider if a town or parish 
council should be formed for Grantham.  

8



3

Creating a town or parish  
council for Grantham?

Grantham is currently the only area in South 
Kesteven which does not have a town or parish 
council.  Grantham has Charter Trustees instead 
of a town council. The Charter Trustees are made 
up of the elected District councillors of the seven 
Grantham wards and are not separately elected by 
the residents of Grantham.  The Charter Trustees 
have no powers in respect of any general functions 
or services and can only hold funds for ceremonial 
and administrative purposes.  The Charter Trustees 
elect the Mayor and Deputy Mayor of Grantham 
from within the group.

A new town or parish council if created would 
replace the current Charter Trustees.

How will the review work?

There will be two stages to the process. The first 
phase will ask stakeholders if they agree with a 
proposal to create a town or parish council for 
Grantham, and for their opinions on altering the 
boundaries of existing parishes, as well as the 
arrangements for any new council, including the 
number of wards.

The responses received during this stage will then 
be used to draw up draft recommendations for any 
changes to the way in which Grantham is governed. 
A second phase of consultation will then ask for 
comments on the draft recommendations. The 
review will be completed within 12 months. 

9



4

What will the review include?

The review will consider:
■ the possibility of creating a Council for the 

currently unparished area of Grantham 
■ the setting of the administrative external 

boundary for that area taking into account 
boundaries of parishes directly adjacent to the 
Town area

■ the warding arrangements of any new town or 
parish council and the number of councillors

■ the impact of any proposed boundary changes 
on neighbouring Parish Councils

What are town and parish 
councils?

Town and parish councils exist in many areas, 
both rural and urban, and are the most local tier of 
government in England.  

A parish council that serves a town area may decide 
to designate itself a ‘town council’.
Town and parish councils do not have statutory 
responsibilities for services such as social care, 
education or housing. They may decide to 
provide some local services for their residents 
or in some cases to take over responsibility for 
services previously delivered by other tiers of local 
government, such as South Kesteven District 
Council.

Town and parish councils also represent their 
communities.  These local councils can also play 
a key role in communities by the promotion of 
community engagement between the Council and 
residents.  They must be consulted on planning 
applications within their area and may work with the 
principal council to create a Neighbourhood Plan for 
development in the area.  They may bid to purchase 
assets of community value or express an interest in 
running a local authority service.

Town and parish councillors are directly elected 
by local voters and are independent of the other 
layers of local government.  Any new town or parish 
council, for example in Grantham, would not replace 

South Kesteven District Council but would exist 
alongside.

What would a town or parish 
council do?

The range of services provided varies and each 
town or parish council decides what services it 
will provide.  These can include the provision of 
allotments; burial grounds and cemeteries; open 
spaces, parks and recreation grounds; public 
conveniences; control of litter and litter bins; play 
areas; community centres; crime prevention; 
festivals and fetes; neighbourhood planning; traffic 
calming; tourism activities and/or markets.  

How much would a town or 
parish council cost?

Town and parish councils are funded through a 
charge added to a household’s Council Tax. This is 
known as a precept. 

A town and parish council precept will depend on 
the size of the parish, the services it
provides and the number of properties across which 
it is spread. It is not possible at this stage to say 
how much a precept would be and it would depend 
on the services and facilities it wants to provide.
It is highly likely that the precept would be more 
than the current rate paid by Grantham residents 
due to the new town or parish council taking on 
additional responsibilities and services.

A town or parish council decides what level of 
precept to charge but in the case of any new town 
or parish councils, South Kesteven District Council 
would set the precept for their first year of operation 
based on the estimated cost of the level of activity 
expected.  

10



5

In relation to service delivery and the level of 
precept, just as for any town or parish councils 
elsewhere in South Kesteven, a new Town or Parish 
Council could decide in future to take on additional 
services of the sort set out above, in negotiations 
with the District Council.

What area(s) could any new 
town or parish council cover?  
How would any boundary 
changes impact on neighbouring 
parishes?

The current boundary of Grantham – the unparished 
area – is shown on Map A on page 7. 

Grantham is a growth town and planning approval 
has been given for a number of developments, such 
as Rectory Farm and Spitalgate Heath, which fall 
outside of the current unparished area. These are 
shown on map b on page 7.

This review will consider what the external boundary 
of any new Council should be and whether any 
changes should be made to boundaries with any of 
the neighbouring parishes (Barrowby, Belton and 
Manthorpe, Great Gonerby, Harlaxton, Little Ponton 
& Stroxton and Londonthorpe & Harrowby Without).

When drawing up parish boundaries, the Council 
must have regard to the existence of natural 
communities and at the same time, ensure that 
boundaries are easy to understand and rely on 
existing landscape features such as roads or rivers.

When would any new town or 
parish council be set up?

This review started in January 2022 and is 
planned to be completed by November 2022.  It is 
anticipated that if any new town or parish council 
were to be established following this review, it would 
come into existence no later than April 2023 with 
elections taking place in May 2023.

Electoral Arrangements

If a new parish or town council is established, South 
Kesteven District Council is required to decide 
whether it should be divided into wards for the 
purpose of electing parish/town councillors and if 
any area or areas of the parish should be separately 
represented on the Council. 

The total local electorate for the unparished area of 
Grantham is currently 28,508 and for the purposes 
of District Council elections the area is divided into 
seven wards returning a total of 15 councillors.  
Consideration of the number and boundary of the 
wards of any new parish or town council form part of 
this consultation.

Maps

Two maps are included  
on page 7:

Map A: the existing unparished Grantham area
 boundary with neighbouring parishes
Map B: development sites, Grantham district ward
 boundaries and neighbouring parishes

11



6

We want to hear your views

Please tell us what you think about the creation of a 
parish or town council for Grantham.  

You can complete our online consultation 
survey at www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
GranthamCGR

Or complete the paper version enclosed in your 
envelope and send it to:
 

Grantham Community 
Governance Review, 
Legal and Democratic Services
South Kesteven District Council
St Peter’s Hill
Grantham
NG31 6PZ 

Additional copies of the survey can be requested by 
contacting the elections team on 

01476 406080 or emailing 
cgr@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Alternatively you can tell us your 
views by emailing 
cgr@southkesteven.gov.uk

Tell us what you think by Friday 8 April 2022.

What happens next?

South Kesteven District Council will take your  
views into account to determine the outcome  
of this review. 

Please note that consultation responses will be 
published in full on our website.

 

12



7

Map A: The existing unparished Grantham area 
boundary with neighbouring parishes

Map B: Development sites, Grantham district ward 
boundaries and neighbouring parishes

13



Contact details
Alternative formats are available on request: 

audio, large print and Braille
 

South Kesteven District Council
01476 40 60 80 

*cgr@southkesteven.gov.uk 
8www.southkesteven.gov.uk

03
48

9R
T_

1.
22

14



Community  
Governance  
Review Survey

Have your say by  
Friday 8 April 2022 at:  
	www.southkesteven.gov.

uk/GranthamCGR 

15



2

Introduction
South Kesteven District Council is undertaking a Community Governance Review to  
determine if there is support for the creation of a town or parish council for Grantham. 

Before SKDC makes any decision, we would like to know what you think.  

The Council understands that Community Governance reviews can be a complicated process and  
would recommend that you read the information provided to help you to complete the survey.

You can complete this survey by going online to www.southkesteven.gov.uk/GranthamCGR or by 
scanning the QR code on the front cover with your mobile phone camera or complete this printed 
version.

Thank you.

This consultation closes on 8 April 2022.

Creation of a town or parish council for Grantham
One of the key questions as part of this Community Governance Review is whether or not a town or 
parish should be created for Grantham. The information provided in the accompanying leaflet provides 
you with information regarding the current governance arrangements for Grantham, the role of a town 
or parish council and the potential cost implications in relation to Council Tax precepting. Having taken 
this information into account we are keen to hear your views as to whether a parish or town council 
should be put in place for Grantham.

Q1. Should a town or parish council be set up to serve the town of Grantham? 

 Yes
 No
 Don’t know/not sure
 Please use the space below to comment on this proposal

16



Setting an administrative boundary
SKDC would like to know if you think any new council should cover just those parts of Grantham 
that don’t currently have a town or parish council (‘the Unparished Area’) or also take in parts of the 
surrounding parish areas; and whether any other changes should be made to those parishes.

As part of a review of the electoral arrangements for South Kesteven in 2015, The Local Government 
Boundary Commission for England identified three areas where properties and electors had been 
included within three of the Grantham District wards but remained within neighbouring Parish Council 
areas. They are detailed on Map A, on page 7, of the information document supplied.

Q2. Should any new parish or town council that is set up in the currently 
unparished area of Grantham also take in any of the urban parts of those 
parishes shown on map A? This could mean parts of Belton & Manthorpe, 
Great Gonerby and/or Londonthorpe & Harrowby Without parishes forming 
part of the new Grantham parish or town council boundary.

 Yes – the new parish/town council should also take in the urban part(s) of the following surrounding 
parish(es): 
 Great Gonerby Parish – 78 properties, 173 electors
 Londonthorpe and Harrowby Without Parish – 189 properties, 343 electors
 Belton and Manthorpe Parish – 111 properties, 234 electors 

 No – the new parish/town council(s) should be confined to the currently unparished area. 
 Don’t know 

 Please use the space below to comment:

3
17



4

The Council is obliged to take account of future developments as part of the community governance 
arrangements and would like your opinion on any other potential changes to parish boundaries. Map 
B on page 7, in the information document sets out the areas that have been indentified for future 
development.

SKDC will also need to be mindful of natural borders and boundaries that may exist in the locality. An 
example of this could be the A1 trunk road which runs adjacent to the currently “unparished” area of 
Grantham. 

Q3. Should the boundary for any new town or parish council change and include 
any part of any other surrounding parishes? This may involve altering the 
boundaries of any of the neighbouring parishes.

 Yes – the boundary for any new parish/town council should change and include other part(s) of the 
following surrounding parish(es): 

 Barrowby (SPECIFY AREA)

 Harlaxton (SPECIFY AREA)

 Little Ponton & Stroxton (SPECIFY AREA)

 Belton and Manthorpe  (SPECIFY AREA)

 Great Gonerby (SPECIFY AREA)

 Londonthorpe & Harrowby Without (SPECIFY AREA)
 No – the boundary for any new parish/town council(s) should be confined to the currently 

unparished area. 
 Don’t know 
 Please use the space below to comment:

18



5

The impact of any proposed boundary changes on parishes
SKDC would also like your opinion on the arrangements it should make in respect of any parishes that 
may be affected by the creation of a new town council.

Q4. In the event that a new parish or town council is established which includes 
the currently unparished area of Grantham and urban parts of one or more 
surrounding parishes, what arrangements should be made for the remaining 
(rural) parts of those parishes?

  If viable, they should remain as individual, smaller, parishes each with their own council 
 They should also be absorbed into the new town council(s) serving Grantham
 Consideration should be given to merging or grouping them into a smaller number of areas 
 Don’t know 

 Please use the space below to comment:

Electoral arrangements
If a new town or parish council is created, SKDC needs to determine if it should be divided into wards 
for the purpose of electing councillors.

Q5. If a new parish or town council is established for Grantham, how should  
it be divided into wards for the purposes of elections?

  Seven wards based on the Grantham district ward boundaries as far as possible. 
 Other warding arrangements – please provide details below
 Don’t know

 If you think there should be different warding arrangements, please use the space 
 below to tell us what these should be 

19



6

Anything else
Q6. If you have any questions or would like to comment on anything included in 

this survey, please use the space below:

Q7. If you would like to be informed of the outcome of the first stage of the 
community governance review, please give us your contact details. They will 
only be used to contact you in relation to this review and will not be used for 
any other purpose or passed onto anyone else.

Name

Address

Town

Postcode

Email address

The Council would prefer to communicate with you by email where possible.

20



About you
To help us make sure that we have taken the views of all our stakeholders into account, we would like 
to know a bit more about you. Please be assured that any information you give us will only be used to 
measure if the views we have gathered are representative of the communities we serve. They will not 
be used to identify you in any way or be passed onto anyone else.

Q8. Please tell us if you are …….? Please tick all that apply.

 A resident of South Kesteven
 A parish, town, district or county councillor
 A parish or town council (please use the space below to tell us which one)
 A local business
 Representing a group or other organisation (please use the space below to tell us which one) 
 Other, please specify

Q9. Please tell us your postcode.  This will only be used to see if we have 
received responses from the areas that will be affected by any changes that 
may be introduced. It will not be used to identify you in any way.

Thank you for taking part. 
By letting us know your thoughts on the proposal to create a town or parish council for Grantham, you 
will help to inform the decision the Council will take on this issue in May. 

THIS CONSULTATION CLOSES ON 8 APRIL 2022.

Return your survey to: 

Grantham Community Governance Review
Legal and Democratic Services
South Kesteven District Council
St Peter’s Hill
Grantham
NG31 6PZ

03489RT_1.22

21



Contact details
Alternative formats are available on request: 

audio, large print and Braille
 

South Kesteven District Council
01476 40 60 80 

*cgr@southkesteven.gov.uk 
8www.southkesteven.gov.uk

03
48

9R
T_

1.
22

22


	Agenda
	3 Notes from the meeting held on 17 January 2022
	4 Community Governance Review Draft Consultation Document
	03489RT_GRANTHAM TOWN COUNCIL CONSULTATION SURVEY


